
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
2.00 pm THURSDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2017 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE 

 

 
 
 

PART 1 
 

1.  To receive any declarations of interest from Members   
 

2.  To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee held on 3 July 2017  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

3.  To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee held on 13 July 2017  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 

4.  To receive the Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2017/18.  
(Pages 19 - 20) 
 
To scrutinise information and monitoring issues being 
reported by: 
 
Joint Report of the Head of Children's and Adult Services and 
Western Bay Regional Programme Director 
 

5.  Western Bay Progress Update Report  (Pages 21 - 40) 
 

6.  To select appropriate items from the Cabinet Board Agenda for pre-
scrutiny (Cabinet Board reports enclosed for Scrutiny Members).   
 

7.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairman pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972   
 



8.  Access to Meetings to resolve to exclude the public for the following 
item(s) pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part 
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.   
 
PART 2 
 

9.  To select appropriate private items from the Cabinet Board Agenda 
for pre-scrutiny (Cabinet Board Reports enclosed for Scrutiny 
Members).   
 

 
S.Phillips 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot 31 August 2017 
 
 
 
Committee Membership:  
 
Chairperson: Councillor L.M.Purcell 

 
Vice 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.E.Freeguard 
 

Councillors: 
 

A.Llewelyn, H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, 
C.Galsworthy, H.N.James, J.Miller, S.Paddison, 
M.Protheroe, S.H.Reynolds, D.Whitelock and 
C.Williams 
 

 
 
Notes:  
 
 (1)  If Committee Members or non-Committee Members wish to have 

relevant items put on the agenda for future meetings, then please 
notify the Chief Executive/Chair eight days before the meeting. 

 
(2) If non-Committee Members wish to attend for an item of interest, then 

prior notification needs to be given (by 12.00 noon on the day before 



the meeting).  Non-Committee Members may speak but not vote, or 
move or second any motion. 

 
(3) For pre scrutiny arrangements, the Chair will normally recommend 

forthcoming executive items for discussion/challenge.  It is also open 
to Committee Members to request items to be raised - though 
Members are asked to be selective here in regard to important 
issues. 

 
(4) The relevant Cabinet Board Members will also be invited to be 

present at the meeting for Scrutiny/ Consultation purposes. 
 
(5) Would the Scrutiny Committee Members please bring the Cabinet 

Board papers with them to the meeting. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

30717 

SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

(Committee Rooms A/B - Neath Civic Centre) 
 

Members Present:  3 July 2017 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor A.Llewelyn 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.E.Freeguard 
 

Councillors: 
 

H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy, 
H.N.James, J.Miller, M.Protheroe, L.M.Purcell, 
S.H.Reynolds, D.Whitelock and C.Williams 
 

Officers In 
Attendance 
 

N.Evans, N. Jarman, A.Jarrett, Mrs.A.Thomas, 
J.Hodges, A.Harvey, Mrs.J.Woodman-Ralph 
and Miss.C.Davies 
 

Cabinet Invitees: 
 

Councillors A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards 
 

Observers  
 

 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS 

 
The following member made a declaration at the commencement of 
the meeting: 
 
Councillor S.Reynolds Agenda Item 12 – Lease 

agreement with Neath Port Talbot 
CVS from 1st April 2017 until 31st 
March 2020 – as she is a Chair of 
the Member Organisation of 
NPTCVS. 

 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND HOUSING 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 16TH MARCH 2017 
 
Members noted the minutes with the following queries. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



- 2 - 
 

30717 

Members asked what the clear focus was in relation to point 9 in the 
Business Support Community Care Service Report Card on page 5 of 
the minutes. Officers clarified that they now have weekly 
management team meetings which enables them to have regular 
monitoring. 
 
Members queried what we were doing in house for the retention and 
recruitment. Officers clarified that there was an issue previously with 
staff retention but measures have been put in place to rectify this and 
there is no longer an issue. It was confirmed that staff are very 
positive about working for Neath Port Talbot. 
 
Members queried why there was not more data available in the 
performance data action plan. Officers explained that these were new 
indicators and that more data would be available in future years. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 2ND MARCH 2017 
 
Members noted the minutes with the following queries. 
 
Members asked what the specific programme reports that were 
highlighted on page 12 of the previous minutes. Officers explained 
that they were the Corporate Improvement Objective - Better Schools 
Brighter Prospects Quarter Three Highlight Report and that officers 
would circulate them to members for information. 
 
Members asked what was the process for monitoring children when 
removed from the child protection register. Officers explained that 
they continue to hold cases open for at least 3 months after being 
removed and audit cases on a regular basis. 
 
Members queried the benefits that children gain from being resident 
in hillside secure unit. Officers gave members a brief background on 
the history of Hillside. It was agreed that arrangements would be 
made for Members to undertake a visit of the Hillside facility. 
 
Members asked what the financial arrangements with Hillside and 
whether there was any income generated. Officers explained that 
there was no cost to the Council and that Hillside was self-funded. It 
was highlighted that the Income Generation Group led by the Deputy 
Leader is looking at all aspects of Income from the Council and a 

Page 6



- 3 - 
 

30717 

report would be brought back to a future meeting on the potential of 
Hillside. 
 
  

4. SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee noted the work programme. 
 
 

5. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
The Committee Scrutinised the following matters:- 
 
Cabinet Board Proposals 
 
5.1 Future Direction Options for Personal Social Services 
 

Members were updated on the options for managing and 
delivering personal social care services over the next five to six 
years. 
 
Members queried how external organisations could gain 
information on Direct Payments and whether an event could be 
organised. Officers explained that a re-launch of direct 
payments scheme was going to take place in future which 
should make this information available to all interested parties. 
 
Members queried that the report gave the impression that there 
was an underspend and that Officers need to be more clear in 
the reports. 
 
Members asked whether the Personal Assistants have the 
same standard of Qualifications that our in house Homecare 
staff have. Officers confirmed yes and have been running 
training courses for Personal Assistants which is funded by the 
Council and Welsh Government. 
 
Members asked whether there is information on the take up of 
Direct Payments across the County by ward and whether there 
were any issues in more rural wards. Officers confirmed that 
they would get back to Members. 
 
Members queried how Officers can ensure them that Personal 
Assistants are providing a quality service. Officers explained 

Page 7



- 4 - 
 

30717 

that they would be monitored regularly to ensure a quality 
service.  
 
Members queried how officers can assure them that the quality 
of care, safeguarding and the cost over long term are being 
monitored. Officers referred to pages 23-25 in the report 
highlighting that Direct Payments are only used where 
necessary. Officers highlighted that all services have a Social 
Worker for support and that all clients who receive Direct 
Payments would receive the same service as other clients. 
 
Members queried whether there was an evaluation strategy. 
Officers confirmed that Social Workers monitor appropriate 
spend of Direct Payments on a daily basis. 
 
Members asked what would happen if there was a lot of 
sickness leave or Annual leave at one time. Officers confirmed 
that they would have a bank of Personal Assistants if this 
happened. 
 
Members asked Officers to re-word the EIA on page 38 

paragraph 6 starting with the word however as members felt 

that the paragraph gave a wrong impression that the council 

was trying to reduce the service it provides. 

 

Members queried that the EIA on Page 51 Section 7 & 8 

Monitoring Arrangements and Outcomes, how this was going to 

be monitored and that the outcomes needed to be more 

measurable and requested a report explaining how this was 

going to be achieved. 

 

Members asked whether the Council has sufficient capacity to 

provide services if the client does not want to use Direct 

Payments. Officers confirmed that they have no capacity 

problem. 

 

Members were concerned at the level of take-up and whether 

there was a pattern of service users taking up Direct Payments. 

Officers explained that some services for example learning 

disabilities had higher rates of take up than others.  

Page 8



- 5 - 
 

30717 

Members queried what affect would the uptake of Direct 

Payments have on the internal Homecare service. Officers 

explained that the Homecare service will concentrate on 

complex need service users, so there would be no reduction in 

staff numbers. Presently, external Homecare Services that are 

bought in by the Council account for 74% and in-house 

providing 26% of specialist care. 

 

Members asked that a progress report be brought back to 

Committee on the changes being taken forward on the Future 

Direction Options for Personal Social Services so Members are 

aware of the changes being made under the Delegated 

arrangements. 

 

Following scrutiny, the Committee was supportive of the 

proposals to be considered by the Cabinet Board. 

 
5.2 Western Bay Commissioning Strategy for Care Homes for 

Older People 2016 – 2025 
 
 The report was withdrawn from today’s meeting, due to the 

concerns expressed by Members on the lack of information on 
Governance around the Western Bay workstreams.   

 Members requested that Sara Harvey (Western Bay 
Programme Director) attend a future meeting. 

 
It was requested that the questions raised prior to the meeting 
be amalgamated and forwarded to the Director of Social Care 
Health and Housing.  

 
5.3 Consultation Outcome of The Neath Port Talbot Draft 

Young Carers Strategy (2017-2020) 
 
Members received information the outcome of the recent public 
consultation of the Draft Young Carers Strategy 2017-2020. 
 
Members queried how fund support for young carers would be 
funded. Officers explained that there was no funding set aside 
for this at present but this could be an outcome of the action 
plan. 
 

Page 9



- 6 - 
 

30717 

Members queried that in the Draft Young carers Strategy on 
Page 153, section 3 (definition of young carer, third paragraph 
starting the Act) that the sentence ‘this is an important change 
as a carer could request a carer’s assessment’ be made 
clearer. 
 
Members requested that Young Carers Strategy reviews are 
reported back to Committee. 
 
Members asked for a report on the Transition to adulthood be 
presented to a future meeting. 
 
Members requested that the Action Plans as detailed on Page 
222 of the circulated report to be SMART. 
 
Following scrutiny the committee was supportive of the 
proposals to be considered by the Cabinet Board 
 
 

6. ACCESS TO MEETINGS 
 
RESOLVED: that pursuant to Section 100A(4) and (5) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items of business 
which involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part 4 
of Schedule 12A to the above Act. 

 
 

7. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
The Committee scrutinised the following private matters:- 
 
Private Cabinet Board Proposals 
 
7.1 To Enter Into an Inter Authority Agreement Within The 

Western Bay Region for The Collaborative Procurement of 
Regional Advocacy Services. 
 
Members received information on entering into an Inter 
Authority Agreement for a Regional Advocacy Service and its 
procurement. 
 

Page 10



- 7 - 
 

30717 

Members requested that in future consideration be given to the 
timescale for procuring services to allow for smaller 
organisations to be able to submit a bid for that service, as 
currently the timescales are too short to allow for this. 
 
Following scrutiny the Committee was supportive of the 
proposals to be considered by the Cabinet Board. 

 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



- 8 - 
 

130717 

SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

(Committee Rooms A/B - Neath Civic Centre) 
 

Members Present:  13 July 2017 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor A.Llewelyn 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.E.Freeguard 
 

Councillors: 
 

H.C.Clarke, A.P.H.Davies, C.Galsworthy, 
H.N.James, J.Miller, S.Paddison, M.Protheroe, 
L.M.Purcell and S.H.Reynolds 
 

Officers In 
Attendance 
 

N. Jarman, D.Berni, G.Evans, D.Harding, 
J.Hodges and N.Evans 
 

Cabinet Invitees: 
 

Councillors A.R.Lockyer and P.D.Richards 
 

 

1. TO RECEIVE THE SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18. 
 
The Committee noted the forward work programme. 
 

2. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
The Committee scrutinised the following matters: 
 
Cabinet Board Proposals 
 
2.1 Redesign of Management Arrangements 
 
Members considered a report that sought support in principle for the 
proposed redesign of management arrangements within the Social 
Services, Health and Housing Directorate. 
 
Officers advised that since the report was published there had been 
discussions that had resulted in the need to remove the post of head 
of Adult Services from the Departmental Structure if the proposals 
were accepted. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



- 9 - 
 

130717 

Members were advised that this was not a further restructuring but 
something far more important and it was hoped would be in place by 
the end of the calendar year. Officers further advised that the 
approach was on an asset based approach and this would be the 
subject of an All Member seminar in the future. 
 
Members asked for assurances that there will be systems in place 
that ensure the appointed Head of Service can manage all services 
under their remit. Officers stated that this proposal was a two way 
split with one Head of Service responsible for the professional side 
and the other responsible for the support side. 
 
Officers continued that this was an opportunity to consolidate the 
business support services because it was currently spread too thinly 
across the directorate. 
 
Members raised concern in relation to the risk associated with the 
proposals and officers confirmed that the proposals will ensure that 
there will be sufficient time for officers to carry out all the required 
work. Officers stated that there would not be any future reports that 
would request cutting staff numbers nor increasing workloads. 
 
Members asked whether the Council has looked at best practice 
elsewhere when developing proposals. Officers confirmed that the 
Council regularly looks for best practice and the Local Area 
Committee model had been taken from an initiative in Australia. 
 
Members asked whether the proposals have been fully costed. 
Officers stated that they have and there are sufficient funds in place 
even if there was an unprecedented increase in demand for services. 
 
Following scrutiny the Committee was supportive of the proposals to 
be considered by the Cabinet Board. 
 
2.2 CSSIW Performance Review of Neath Port Talbot County 
Borough Council Social Services 
 
Members considered the report that was the assessment by the Care 
and Social Services Inspectorate Wales of the Council’s Social 
Services Functions. 
 
Members were advised that the Senior Management Team of the 
Department met twice yearly with inspectors to discuss policies, 
procedures and processes within Social Services. 

Page 14



- 10 - 
 

130717 

 
Members asked what inspections the Care and Social Services 
Inspectorate Wales had undertaken in the past year. Officers stated 
that the inspectorate generally undertook thematic inspections across 
Wales. Specific inspections were generally undertaken within 
individuals Councils when the need arose. 
 
Members asked for clarity in relation to the statement contained 
within the assessment about Local Assembly Members opposition 
against some of the proposed changes. Officers stated that this was 
generally with regards suggestions of setting up social enterprises 
and that this was incorrectly seen as outsourcing. 
 
Following scrutiny the report was noted. 
 
2.3 Development of a Pilot Transition Team between Children and 
Adult Services 
 
Members considered a report that sought Members approval to 
establish a pilot transition team for individuals moving from children’s 
services to adult services. 
 
Officers advised that a steering group would be established to 
monitor the pilot and any issues will be addressed going forward. 
Members were told that the pilot team would be responsible for 
establishing protocols that would become the norm if the pilot was 
successful and the service is embedded. 
 
Members asked what the potential challenges were and it was 
confirmed that the focus will be for young people with complex care 
needs requiring support into adulthood to include those young people 
with substance misuse problems, emerging mental health difficulties 
and self harm.  
 
Members requested clarity on why the pilot would run for 5 months 
and officers stated that this was due to bureaucracy and anything 
over this limit becomes a permanent change, if the pilot is successful 
or needs to be extended further update reports and project proposals 
will be presented to the Committee for consideration. 
 
Further clarity was requested in relation to staff resources in the pilot 
and officers stated that there would be 2 social workers from adult 
services and children’s services and this was deemed sufficient for 
the pilot. 

Page 15



- 11 - 
 

130717 

 
Following scrutiny the committee was supportive of the proposals to 
be considered by the Cabinet Board. 
 
2.4 Monitoring the performance and progress of the Western Bay 
Regional Adoption Service 
 
Members considered a report that contained information on the 
performance of the Regional Adoption Service. 
 
Members were pleased to note that this initiative has reduced the 
amount of time before a looked after child becomes adopted but 
officers stated that there is need for further improvements. Officers 
continued that this was an issue across Wales and not just a problem 
for the Western Bay Region. 
 
Members raised concerns in relation to the way the report was written 
and that it included too many acronyms throughout. It was agreed 
that in the future Democratic Services Officers would ensure that any 
acronyms would be contained within a document that would 
accompany the relevant report. 
 
Clarity was sought on how the service reaches out to prospective 
adoptive parents and it was confirmed that the advertising was via the 
use of the website, general publicity such as poster campaigns and 
advertising at events but it should also be noted that advertising for 
adopters differs from advertising for fostering as applicant’s 
motivation is different. 
. 
Members asked what were the delays in relation to placing children 
for adoption and officers stated that on occasions it was out of the 
services control and as a result of medical delays. 
 
Following scrutiny the report was noted. 
 
2.5 Quarterly Performance Management Data 2016/2017 – Quarter 
Four Performance Data 
 
Members considered the end of year performance monitoring report 
for 2016/2017. 
 
Members asked why there was no all wales comparative data for 
performance in relation to homelessness. Officers stated that this was 

Page 16



- 12 - 
 

130717 

because the information was not yet available from Welsh 
Government.  
 
Members questioned the unprecedented change in complaints and 
officers stated that this was because of the proposed service changes 
that had been consulted on i.e. changes to home care service and 
changes to day opportunities. 
 
Following scrutiny the report was noted. 
 
2.6 Children and Young People Services – 4th Quarter Performance 
report. 
 
Members considered the end of year performance monitoring report 
for 2016/2017. 
 
Members asked why only 66% of cases had been consulted through 
the Section 47 process. Officers stated that a high number of cases 
were seen at the initial stage and that this snapshot figure did not 
mean that individuals had not been consulted.  
 
Following scrutiny the report was noted.  
 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Version 2 – 29 August 2017   Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies 

 

(DRAFT) 
Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee  

Forward Work Programme 2017/18 
 
 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Officer 

7 September 2017 Western Bay Progress and Update Report Sara Harvey/Nick 
Jarman 

   

  

5 October 2017   

   

  

2 November 2017   

   

  

30 November 2017   

   

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



 

Version 2 – 29 August 2017   Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies 

 

  

 11 January 2018   

   

  

8 February 2018   

   

  

8 march 2018   

   

  

5 April 2018   

   

  

26 April 2018   

   

 
 

P
age 20



 

   

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

7 September 2017 

Joint Report of the Head of Children's and Adult Services 
and the Western Bay Programme Director  

 

Matter for Information  
 

Wards Affected:  

All wards 

 

Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme Update 

Purpose of the Report  

1. This report provides an update to Members concerning the Western Bay 
Health and Social Care Programme for information.   

Executive Summary 

2. Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council has been a founding and core 
partner in the Western Bay health and social care programme since its 
establishment in 2012.  Western Bay is overseen by a Regional 
Partnership Board which includes the three Local Authorities, ABMU 
Health Board, third sector, independent sector, carer and service user 
representatives. There are two tiers of Western Bay activity. Tier one 
includes a series of change programmes and projects. Tier two includes 
well established regional working projects and services. Tier one 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

   

programme and projects are: community services for older people; 
carers; children's services; integrated autism service; Welsh Community 
Care Information System; Contracting and Procurement project; 
workforce development. Additional requirements of Western Bay include 
a pooled fund arrangement for care home accommodation and the 
development of an area plan. Funding for the programme is mainly from 
Welsh Government Integrated Care Fund matched with core funding. 
Governance is overseen by the Regional Partnership Board and several 
project boards.  Communication of the work of Western Bay is a priority 
for the partnership. 

Background  

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council has been a founding and core 
partner in the Western Bay programme since its establishment in 2012.  
The other statutory partners engaged in Western Bay are Bridgend 
County Borough Council, the City and County of Swansea and the 
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board.  The purpose of the 
Western Bay partnership is to provide a strategic mechanism for co-
ordinating a programme of change in a suite of projects that partners 
have identified as a common concern.    

The Programme’s vision is to provide high quality services that protect 
children and adults from harm, promote independence and deliver 
positive outcomes for people in Bridgend, Neath Port Talbot and 
Swansea.  

To achieve this, the ABMU Health Board and the Local Authorities of 
Bridgend County Borough Council, Neath Port Talbot County Borough 
Council and the City and County of Swansea are working together 
through the Western Bay Health and Social Care Collaborative, with third 
and independent sector partners.   

The Western Bay programme focuses on those areas of activity where 
there is added value in working together.  The added value might be 
measured in service efficiencies and costs savings, or cost avoidance.  
The added value might be in service improvements for people using our 
services locally, where regional planning between health and social care 
partners benefits people receiving those services.  It might be in sharing 

Page 22



 

   

good practise between sectors, or across geographical boundaries. The 
delivery of most of the programme is done at a local level. 

3. The programme is divided into two Tiers of activity.  The programmes and 
projects in "Tier One" are transformational, or change work streams which 
are overseen by the Regional Partnership Board. "Tier Two" are business 
as usual services which have gone through the process of 
transformational change and are delivering joint working on a regional 
basis.  Examples of Tier two work streams include the Regional 
Safeguarding Boards for Adults and Children and the Regional Adoption 
Service.  Tier Two projects report to the Western Bay Regional 
Partnership Board by exception, if there are issues which require 
escalating to the Board. 

Tier one work streams are set out in the governance structure for 
Western Bay (appendix 1). Community Services, or services for frail 
people is the largest work stream.  One of the main, and quantifiable, 
pressures on current services arises from the growth in the number of 
people who are frail.  People who are frail are also typically, though not 
exclusively, old and many will therefore have dementia.  Identifying the 
potential impact on services, and resource use, from this group of people, 
and then focussing our efforts on meeting these needs differently through 
an enhanced intermediate, integrated health and social care model is 
therefore vital. 

One of the main, and quantifiable, pressures on current services arises 
from the growth in the number of people who are frail.  People who are 
frail are also typically, though not exclusively, old and many will therefore 
have dementia.  Identifying the potential impact on services, and resource 
use, from this group of people, and then focussing our efforts on meeting 
these needs differently through an enhanced intermediate, integrated 
health and social care model is therefore vital. 

Working together Abertawe BroMorgannwg University Health board, 
(ABMU HB) the City and County of Swansea (CCoS),  Neath Port Talbot 
County Borough Council (NPT CBC) and Bridgend County Borough 
Council (BCBC) have developed integrated community services to tackle 
these pressures.  

Community Services 

Page 23



 

   

Community Services is the largest of the Western Bay work streams, so 
much so that it’s now regarded as a Programme in its own right. 

The Community Services Programme focuses on the transformation of 
care services for older people by moving away from the traditional 
institutionalised models of care, to community-based support which helps 
people to live independently in their own homes and communities for 
longer. 

In September 2013, the four core partner organisations, including 
NPTCBC signed up to a joint commitment to plan and deliver better 
community services. As part of the ongoing implementation of the joint 
commitment document, the Programme has undertaken a significant 
amount of work to implement the first priority of developing Intermediate 
Care tier services across Western Bay. 

The integrated approach between health and social care in Western Bay 
has overcome challenges around silo working and inertia in well-
established organisations, while also working across geographical 
boundaries. 

The focus has been on expanding ‘Intermediate Care’ teams so that, 
where possible, people can be cared for in their own homes rather than 
be admitted into hospital.   The approach also supports those leaving 
hospital, helping them to settle back into a safe and comfortable home. 

The Programme has developed a model of care for older people aged 65 
and over. The focus of the model is delivering the highest quality of care 
throughout all of our services and ensuring that people are able to live in 
their own homes and communities for longer. 

The views of stakeholders (service users, carers, volunteers, third sector 
colleagues, local authorities and the health board) were used to shape 
the model, entitled ‘What Matters to Me’. The model takes a whole 
systems approach to improving Community Services, and it informs 
the work of the Community Services Programme on an ongoing basis. 

Page 24



 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Optimal Model of Intermediate Care comprises several key features 
that have been implemented across the region to ensure equity and 
consistency of access to services. It forms part of a wider strategic 
framework for delivering older people’s services, as shown above. 

The model of integrated intermediate care services (below) provides a 
number of functions.   

Each part of the pathway is supported by a multi-disciplinary – cross 
sector team from Health and Social care with the most appropriate 
professional supporting individuals/families as required. 

 

Page 25



 

   

 

 

Common Access Point - access via one contact number, on the basis of 
that conversation, either they are offered a rapid response, advice and 
information or signposting, including third sector, where appropriate.  
Where applicable, a proportionate assessment will be undertaken to 
access the most suitable response or intervention.   

Rapid Response - the rapid response service is available through a rapid 
clinical response (doctor, nurse and/or therapist). The response will be 
within 4 hours between 8am and 8pm.  The main intention of rapid 
response is avoiding admission where appropriate or expediting 
discharge. 

Access for people with Dementia - a rapid response access pathway for a 
person with dementia that needs support from a mental health 
professional during a crisis.  

Patient / 
Service User 

 

Common 
access point 

 
Rapid 

Response 
Service 

(inc Virtual 
Ward) 

Access for 
people with 
Dementia 

 

Step-up / 

Step-down 

Assessment 

 

Reablement 

 

Third Sector 
Brokerage 

Page 26



 

   

Step-up/Step-down Assessment - a package of care lasting up to 6 
weeks, commonly in an individual’s usual residential setting, which 
provides care and support to maximise independence. This would 
normally be offered where support is needed to avoid hospital admission, 
or when someone needs intensive support upon discharge from hospital.  

Reablement - reablement focuses on helping people to regain skills that 
they may have lost, due to hospital admission or illness. A package of 
care lasting up to 6 weeks which may include both health and social care 
interventions to address the client’s individual needs.  

Third Sector Brokerage - a third sector representative who operates as 
part of a Common Access Point to provide alternative solutions where 
statutory support is not needed.  

The model is being delivered across Neath Port Talbot, Bridgend and 
Swansea for the benefit of people living in the Health Board area. 

A joint commitment to delivering improved community services enabling: 

 Support for people to remain independent and keep well; 

 More people to be cared for at home, with shorter stays in hospital if 
they are unwell; 

 A change in the pathway away from institutional care to community 
care; 

 Less people being asked to consider long term residential or nursing 
home care, particularly in a crisis; 

 More people living with the support of technology and appropriate 
support services; 

 Services that are more joined up around the needs of the individual 
with less duplication and hand-offs between health and social care 
agencies; 

 More treatment being provided at home, as an alternative to hospital 
admission; 

 Services available on a 7 day basis; 

Page 27



 

   

 Earlier diagnosis of dementia and quicker access to specialist support 
for those who need it. 

This means that Community Services are delivering at a local level: 

Services that support people to remain confident independent and safe in 
their own homes for as long as possible and in accordance with their 
dignity and choice.   

Services that are coordinated to reduce the number of unplanned 
admissions into hospital and long term care and support timely discharge 
when a hospital admission is appropriate. 

Anticipatory Care Planning is a further part of the 'What Matters to Me 
Model' and aims to support the development of integrated care, enabling 
proactive management of our most vulnerable residents who are already 
known to health and social care services. Its aim is to avoid unnecessary 
admissions to hospital or care homes and enable people to live in their 
own home for longer by providing a person-centred, co-ordinated, and 
responsive service.   

A Care Home Commissioning group has been established within the 
Programme, initially to develop a Western Bay Care Home 
Commissioning Strategy for Older People, which is the subject of a 
separate report to the Committee. The strategy is a long term vision of the 
requirements for the care home sector across the Western Bay area 
given the increased level of community services available. 

Over the past 5 years, the care homes market has become increasingly 
complex, with a number of different challenges, such as demographic 
changes, closure of homes, homes not meeting quality thresholds and 
increasing numbers of older people with complex needs. The strategy 
envisages an environment that actively promotes choice and control, 
underpinned by robust quality assurance tools ensuring the delivery of 
effective, positive outcomes.  It seeks to ensure that residents can access 
to information and advice, including advocacy, to make informed choices. 

There is a requirement on the Regional Partnership Board to establish a 
pooled fund arrangement for care home accommodation on a regional 
footprint by April 2018.  Pooled funds should bring more consistency and 
support a more stable market for commissioning services. The work is 

Page 28



 

   

being progressed through the Community Services programme and will 
build on the formal agreement already in place between NPTCBC and the 
ABMU HB (Section 33 agreement). 

Carers 

ABMU Carers Partnership Board was established in 2012 in response to 
the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010 which required NHS and 
Local Authorities in Wales to work in partnership to prepare an 
Information and Consultation Strategy for Carers. The group produced 
Valuing Carers - ABMU Carers Partnership Carers Information and 
Consultation Strategy 2013 – 2016. The purpose of this strategy was to 
ensure ABMU Health Board and its Local Authority partners work 
together to inform and consult with Carers when they access health and 
Local Authority services.   

The Health Board had the responsibility for publishing the strategy and 
both the Health Board and Local Authorities had the responsibility for 
putting it into action; additionally, they recognise that they could not 
achieve the outcomes set out in the strategy without the input and support 
from the Carers Services established in Bridgend, Neath Port Talbot and 
Swansea. The role Carers Services and Carer representative 
organisations play in supporting Carers is valued and was captured in the 
strategy. The Valuing Carers strategy and action plan covered a three 
year period and ran from 1st April 2013 to 31st March 2016.  This has 
been followed by a Transition Plan which outlines the work of the Board in 
support of carers. 

The Carers Partnership Board is currently chaired by the Director of 
Primary and Community Services ABMU and the Director of Social 
Services and Well-being Bridgend County Borough Council is vice chair. 
In addition, the Board comprises the Local Authority Officers /Carers 
Lead, Locality Planning and Partnership Managers, and Locality Planning 
and Partnership Support Managers, ABMU Programme Manager Mental 
Health, ABMU Carers Champion, Managers of Swansea, Bridgend and 
Neath Port Talbot Carers Services, NPT CVS Health and Well-being 
Facilitator and the Regional Programme Director, Western Bay. 

Carers’ views shape the work of ABMU Carers Partnership Board. This is 
achieved through the presentation of Carers feedback each quarter and 

Page 29



 

   

comments from local Carer Centres/ Service and Young Carers Projects. 
In addition views are gathered at ABMU wide events where Carers and 
Young Carers from the three local authority areas come together.   

Having progressed the regional Adoption Service and supported the 
establishment of the Integrated Family Support Service, Heads of 
Children's Services have become part of Western Bay at Tier 1 to 
progress work on regional advocacy for children. Also to establish a Multi 
Agency Placement Support Service.  MAPPS is a multi-disciplinary team 
that aims to help children with, or at risk of mental illness and emotional 
and behavioural difficulties by providing specialist placement support. The 
Service will support children to ensure practice across the Western Bay 
Region is preventative, pro-active, planned and promotes permanence.  
The Heads of Children's Services are further working closely with ABMU 
HB in relation to CAMHS services. 

Integrated Autism Service 

As part of the Welsh Government strategy to support people with autism, 
there is a funding commitment to the development of a national service 
that: is equitable across Wales; provides consistent accessible 
information and provides consistent accessible support for people with 
autism. The Integrated Autism Service is to be established on a regional 
basis (mirroring Health Board footprints).  The aim of the service is to 
ensure that autistic individuals, their family and carers are able to access 
the advice, support and interventions needed to enable them to reach 
their full potential where these are otherwise unavailable.  This is a more 
recent work stream in the Western Bay programme being led by the 
ABMU HB. 

Welsh Community Care Information Service (WCCIS)   

The Welsh Community Care Information Service (WCCIS) is an electronic 
information sharing platform designed to deliver improved care and 
support for people across Wales.  By allowing information to be shared 
quickly and securely, the WCCIS enables Health Boards and Social 
Services staff to work together to plan, co-ordinate, and deliver services 
and support for individuals, families and communities.  It will show a 
patient/client’s progress within their Health and Social Care journey and 
provide professionals with clear and consistent data records.  

Page 30



 

   

The benefits of WCCIS include the ability to share information across 
Health and Social Care services which previously have been frustrated by 
the use of different Social Care and NHS Wales community health 
systems across Wales. This is a consistent problem that has often 
created a barrier to effective integration between Local Authorities and 
Health Boards.  The WCCIS provides a solution to many of these 
information sharing problems, with some of the key advantages being: 
access to more comprehensive, joined up data; less chasing for 
information; less paperwork; more time for staff to focus on care; more 
person-focused, coordinated care for individuals and their families. 

A regional business plan has been produced which sets out the benefits 
and an outline time scale for deployment of WCCIS across Western Bay. 
NPTCBC has indicated that the system will not be adopted before 2019. 

Contracting and Procurement Project 

The main aims of the Contracting and Procurement project are: 

To effect a sustainable and efficient ‘practice to commissioning’ 
methodology across Western Bay which commissions high quality health 
and social care services which are proportionate to need and are cost 
effective. 

To enable sharing and coordination of information, intelligence and 
planning together in service area of common interest. 

To help partners shift front line practice towards the requirement of the 
Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

This is achieved through the following work streams: 

Outcome Focused Assessments 

The Outcome Focused Assessment reassesses an individual’s needs 
and recognises outcomes based on the progression model and further 
identifies areas where independence can be developed. 

The assessment recognises the strengths of an organisation and the 
individual and identifies areas that could be further developed. The 
process is outcome focused and ensures that the individual has every 

Page 31



 

   

opportunity to meet their full potential. The overall cost of the placement is 
reviewed to ensure it is competitive and benchmarked in line with current 
market values. 

This process ensures that the individual is receiving a good quality 
service that meets their needs to achieve agreed outcomes. This has to 
be at a price that is reasonable and sustainable to ensure effective 
service delivery. 

Mental Health & Learning Disability Brokerage  

Regional Service for Residential Placements (including 
Nursing) 

The Mental Health Regional Brokerage service is a process where Care 
Coordinators, with the support of other professionals, complete a 
brokerage form for all new placements which details a service user’s 
needs and the outcomes to be achieved by the provider. 

Once funding in principle has been agreed by the relevant organisational 
lead, the Regional Officer will match the referral to a database of 
accredited providers and seek expressions of interest requesting details 
of how specific outcomes will be met, and at what cost. 

Embedding the Outcomes Focused Process across the Region 

The project team are working closely with partner organisations in order 
to embed the Outcomes Focused Methodology into social work teams. 

Outcome Focused Assessments for Children with Complex Needs in 
Managed Care Services 

Following a pilot, the project is reviewing Children with Complex Needs in 
Managed Care Services. Initially, six individuals were identified (two per 
Local Authority area) for review, to ensure that the same process can be 
applied to children as adults.  The outcomes of the pilot proved that there 
was a case for rolling out the review process. 

Considerable savings and levels of cost avoidance have been achieved in 
the work with adults which can be provided to the Committee, together 

Page 32



 

   

with case studies about improved outcomes for people locally who 
receive packages of care. 

National Collaborative Framework  

Western Bay has been involved in the development of a National 
Framework for Younger Adults (18 – 64 years) in Mental Health and 
Learning Disabilities Care Homes & Care Homes with Nursing for NHS 
and Local Authorities in Wales. 

The key objectives for the Framework are as follows: 

To improve health and wellbeing of patients / citizens within publicly 
funded externally provided care settings. 

To improve quality and safety assurances of the care provided within 
publicly funded externally provided care settings. 

To reduce the overall publicly funded costs of externally provided care. 

Regional Quality Framework (RQF) for Care Homes 

This aspect of the project relates to the implementation and governance 
of the Regional Quality Framework (RQF) for care homes within the 
Western Bay region. 

The RQF is a document created by My Home Life Cymru in partnership 
with the Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme to assess the 
quality of care delivered to care home residents in the areas of Bridgend, 
Neath Port Talbot and Swansea. 

It helps commissioners to monitor care services in a more consistent 
manner, setting out a clear ratings system of Gold, Silver and Bronze. 

An accompanying Toolkit has been devised offering practical guidance for 
care homes to benchmark and strive for continuous improvement against 
a clear set of criteria. 

The RQF works across the Contracting and Procurement project and the 
Community Services Programme and is being implemented across the 
region with a view to being incorporated into future commissioning 
activities. 

Page 33



 

   

Unmet Need within Mental Health 

A programme of work is underway across the region to identify unmet 
need within the Mental Health service. Officers from across the region are 
gathering data which will inform partners of commissioning options. 

Workforce Development 

Workforce Development is an important part of any change programme 
and working closely with Social Care Wales, a regional plan is being 
developed which sets out the priorities for workforce development in 
delivering services in response to the Social Services and Wellbeing 
(Wales) Act.  

Prevention and Wellbeing  

Prevention and Wellbeing is no longer an explicit work stream in Western 
Bay but it underpins the programme. One practical example is Local Area 
Coordination which was piloted by the City & County of Swansea and with 
Welsh Government funding support, was piloted in Neath Port Talbot and 
Bridgend. An evaluation of LAC was undertaken by Swansea University 
for Western Bay. 

Funding 

Increasingly over the past 5-10 years, Welsh Government policy direction 
has been to emphasise the importance of working together across 
geographical and sector boundaries to transform services for people and 
to realise efficiencies.  Several health and social care related funding 
streams are allocated regionally, many on the Western Bay footprint.   
The main sources of funding overseen by the Regional Partnership Board 
have been Integrated Care Fund (formerly Intermediate Care Fund) and 
Delivering Transformation Grant. 

The ICF in 2017/18 of £10m has been allocated to the ABMU HB with a 
set of criteria which includes oversight by the Regional Partnership Board.    

The Western Bay Programme Office is hosted by the City & County of 
Swansea, through the employment of a small team of staff who 
coordinate and support a set of programmes and projects that progress 

Page 34



 

   

health and social care integration. The funding for this arrangement has 
to date been through different Welsh Government funding streams 
(Regional Collaboration Fund, Delivering Transformation Grant and 
Intermediate Care Fund). Welsh Government transferred the Delivering 
Transformation Grant funding to the Revenue Support Grant to continue 
to support the regional  joint working activity and new requirements 
around partnership working,  as required within the Social Services and 
Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014.  Part 9 of the Act specifically imposes 
legislative obligations on partners relating to Partnership Arrangements.  
It requires Local Authorities and the Health Board to make arrangements 
to promote co-operation with their relevant partners and others, in relation 
to adults with needs for care and support, carers and children.  It also 
provides Welsh Ministers with regulation making powers in relation to 
formal partnership arrangements, resources for partnership arrangements 
(including pooled funds) and partnership boards.  There is a statutory 
requirement for Directors of Social Services to ensure that partnership 
working arrangements are in place and are delivering improved 
effectiveness and efficiency in relation to the delivery of care and support 
services to address care and support needs, and support needs for 
carers, identified in the population needs assessment.   A draft 
Partnership Agreement has been developed to reflect the agreed partner 
contributions required to support the Western Bay Programme Office. The 
draft Partnership Agreement is based on the provisions of Section 33 of 
the National Health Services (Wales) Act 2006, which enables the Health 
Board and Local Authorities to pool funds to enable the provision of 
shared services.  A separate report seeking agreement for this 
arrangement will be brought to the Committee. 

Governance 

As a result of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2016, the 
partnership has been established on a statutory footing and there is a 
requirement for the 3 Local Authorities and the Health Board to work 
together to progress integrated regional working between health and 
social care, with non statutory partners, through a Regional Partnership 
Board. The Western Bay Regional Partnership Board was formally 
established in November 2017, although it was preceded by a 
Partnership Forum established in 2014, with fewer representatives on it 
but including the Leader and portfolio holders.  Scrutiny of the programme 
has remained with each of the LAs and HB, although interest in a regional 

Page 35



 

   

scrutiny arrangement has previously been put forward by Bridgend CBC 
and the City & County of Swansea. 

To support a share of ownership and engagement across the work 
streams, sponsors and leads have been agreed from either the Local 
Authorities, or the Health Board.  

The introduction of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 
2016 has been a key driver for change over the past 12 months. Its 
principles are based on collaboration, integration, prevention and 
empowering those receiving services by ensuring their needs and 
aspirations remain at the very heart of service planning and delivery.  

The Act represents an important culture shift for health and social care 
services in Wales. In Western Bay, the partners have welcomed the 
opportunity to embrace change by coming together, sharing information 
and resources and shaping strong and sustainable services for the 
future.  

Communication 

Communication of the Western Bay programme has been identified as a 
priority and regular communications are circulated via a quarterly 
newsletter and bulletins. The Western Bay web-site captures information 
about the programme and is a useful reference point 
www.westernbay.org.uk . Service user case studies are also captured 
and collated with partners across the various work streams and provide a 
powerful tool in capturing the impact of the programme.  An 'induction 
video' was produced by the Western Bay Programme Office to provide 
newly elected Members with an overview of the Programme (available on 
YouTube: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=y5KLiulqwKE&feature=youtu.be ). 

Financial Impact  

4. There are no financial impacts associated with this report. 

Equality Impact Assessment  

5. There are no equality impacts associated with this report. 

Page 36

http://www.westernbay.org.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=y5KLiulqwKE&feature=youtu.be


 

   

Workforce Impacts 

6. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report. 

Legal Impacts 

7. There are no legal impacts associated with this report. 

Risk Management 

8. There are no risk management issues associated with this report. 

Consultation 

9. There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation 
on this item. 

Appendices  

Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme Governance Structure 
v13 (August 2017) 

List of Background Papers 

http://moderngov.neath-
porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s20780/Western%20Bay%20Report%20NP
T%20Scrutiny%20Committee%2016%2003%2010%202.pdf 

Officer Contact 

10. Sara Harvey, Regional Programme Director Western Bay, 01792 
6367522, sara.harvey@swansesa.gov.uk  

11. Andrew Jarrett, Head of Children's and Adult Services, 01639 763327. 
A.jarrett@npt.gov.uk  

 

 

 

Page 37

http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s20780/Western%20Bay%20Report%20NPT%20Scrutiny%20Committee%2016%2003%2010%202.pdf
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s20780/Western%20Bay%20Report%20NPT%20Scrutiny%20Committee%2016%2003%2010%202.pdf
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s20780/Western%20Bay%20Report%20NPT%20Scrutiny%20Committee%2016%2003%2010%202.pdf
mailto:sara.harvey@swansesa.gov.uk
mailto:A.jarrett@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



K
e

y
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 P

ro
je

c
ts

T
IE

R
 O

N
E

Community Services 

Planning and Delivery 

Board
Sponsor –Dave Howes (SSC))

Lead – Vicky Warner (ABMU)

CS Implementation Manager – 

Ellaine Tanner

Project Coordinator – Jess 

Fitzpatrick (WB)

D
e

c
is

io
n

 M
a

k
in

g
/L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
  

Western Bay Programme Team

Chair – Programme Director
 Programme Director, Sponsors, Leads, PM’s & 

Programme Co-ordinator 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 a

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

y
 

E
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 B

a
s
is

Western Bay Health & Social Care Programme 

Governance Structure v13 (August 2017)

Contracting and 

Procurement

Project Board
Sponsor - Dave Howes – (CCoS)

Lead – Jackie Davies (Bridgend 

CBC)

Implementation Manager – 

Kelly Gillings (WB)

Western Bay 

Regional Trade 

Union Forum

Regional & local 

representatives 

HR Leads
Finance & 

Legal Leads

Workforce 

Development 

Steering Group
Sponsor – Sue Cooper 

(Bridgend CBC)

Lead – Sara Harvey, WB 

SCiP Coordinator – 

Annie O’Reilly (NPT 

BCBC)

 Area Plan 

 Working 

Group 
Lead – Sara 

Harvey (WB)

Welsh Community 

Care Information 

System

Project Board
Interim Chair – Sarah 

Caulkin(CCoS)

Implementation 

Manager – Steve 

Davies (WB)

ABMU HB Carers 

Partnership Board
Chair – Hilary Dover (ABMU HB)

Vice Chair – Sue Cooper (BCBC r 

Carers Coordinator WB – 

Liz Griffiths-Hughes

Western Bay Regional Citizens Panel

Facilitator: Kirsty Roderick 

 Health Wellbeing Facilitators: 

Amy Meredith-Davies & Lauren Howlett (SCVS)

Helen Evans (NPTCVS)

Kay Harris (BAVO)

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 a

s
 U

s
u

a
l

T
IE

R
 T

W
O

Integrated Family (IFSS) 

Support Service 
Chair – Dave Howes (CCoS)

Lead – BCBC 

Safeguarding Adult & 

Child Regional Boards
Chair – Sue Cooper 

(Bridgend CBC)

Nick Jarman (NPT CBC)

Lead – NPT CBC

Regional Collaborative 

Committee

 Supporting People
Chair - 

Lead – CCoS 

Regional Area Planning 

Board (SMAT)
Chair – 

(ABMU HB)

Lead – NPT CBC

Youth Justice and Early 

Intervention Service
Chair – Nick Jarman 

(NPT CBC)

Lead – BCBC 

Regional Adoption 

Service
Chair – Nick Jarman 

(NPT CBC)

Lead –CCoS

ABMU HB

Commissioning Boards 

for 

Mental Health and Learning 

Disability

Children and Young People

Western Bay 

Regional Partnership Board 
Chair – Cllr Rob Stewart, Leader, CCoS

Vice Chair – Andrew Davies, Chairman, ABMU HB
LA Leaders, HB Chairman, LA Portfolio Holders, LA CXs, HB CX, Directors of Social 

Services, HB Director of Strategy, Third Sector Reps, Carers Rep, Provider Rep, 

Service User Rep

Western Bay Leadership Group 

Chair – Darren Mepham, CX for Bridgend
LA & HB CX, Social Services Directors, HB Directors of Strategy & P.ships, 

Programme Director & Programme

 Co-ordinator

Health Board

Scrutiny - 

Swansea

Scrutiny - Bridgend Cabinet - Bridgend

Scrutiny - NPT Cabinet - NPT

Cabinet - Swansea

Regional ASD Strategy 

Group (Integrated 

Autism Service) 
Sponsor – Julie Thomas, 

CCS

Interim Lead – Christine 

Griffiths, ABMU

 

Head of Children’s 

Services Group
Chair – Andrew Jarrett 

NPTCBC

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on 3 July 2017
	3 To receive the Minutes of the Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee held on 13 July 2017
	4 To receive the Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2017/18.
	5 Western Bay Progress Update Report
	Governance Western Bay August 2017 WORD


